CEQA Initial Study

5th & Sterling Project

San Bernardino, California

Lead Agency

City of San Bernardino 201 North E Street, 3rd Floor San Bernardino, CA 92401

Proposed Lead Agency Discretionary Permit

Development Permit Type-D (DP-D 23-13)

CEQA Consultant

T&B Planning, Inc. 3200 El Camino Real, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92602

Project Applicant

Fifth & Sterling, LLC 26569 Community Center Drive Highland, CA 92346

Date: April 10, 2024

Table of Contents

<u>Section</u>	<u>on</u>		Page
1.0	INTRO	DUCTION	1
	1.1	Purpose and Scope of this CEQA Initial Study	1
	1.2	Potential Environmental Effects of the Proposed Project	1
2.0	PROJE	ECT DESCRIPTION AND SETTING	2
	2.1	Project Overview	2
	2.2	Project Location	2
	2.3	Environmental Setting and Surrounding Land Uses	2
	2.4	Description of the Proposed Project	3
3.0	ENVIR	ONMENTAL CHECKLIST AND ANALYSIS	9
	١.	Aesthetics	
	١١.	Agriculture and Forestry Resources	
	III.	Air Quality	
	IV.	Biological Resources	
	V.	Cultural Resources	
	VI.	Energy	
	VII.	Geology and Soils	
	VIII.	Greenhouse Gas Emissions	
	IX.	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	
	Χ.	Hydrology and Water Quality	
	XI.	Land Use and Planning	
	XII.	Mineral Resources	
	XIII.	Noise	
	XIV.	Population and Housing	
	XV.	Public Services	
	XVI.	Recreation	
	XVII.	Transportation	40
	XVIII.	Tribal Cultural Resources	
	XIX.	Utilities and Service Systems	43
	XX.	Wildfire	
	XXI.	Mandatory Findings of Significance	
4.0	REFER	ENCES	

Figure

Page

Figure 2-1	Regional Map	.4
Figure 2-2	Vicinity Map	.5
Figure 2-3	USGS Topographic Map	.6
Figure 2-4	Aerial Photograph	.7
Figure 2-5	Proposed Development Plan	.8

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Purpose and Scope of this CEQA Initial Study

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statewide environmental law contained in Public Resources Code Sections (§) 21000-21177. CEQA applies to most public agency decisions to carry out, authorize, or approve actions that have the potential to adversely affect the environment. CEQA requires that public agencies analyze and acknowledge the environmental consequences of their discretionary actions and consider alternatives and mitigation measures that could avoid or reduce significant adverse impacts to the environment when avoidance or reduction is feasible. The CEQA compliance process also gives other public agencies and the general public an opportunity to comment on a proposed project's environmental effects.

This Initial Study evaluates the potential for the proposed project (the Project) to adversely affect the physical environment. As part of the City of San Bernardino's (sometimes referred to herein as City) discretionary permit review process, the Project is required to undergo an initial environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines § 15063. This Initial Study is a preliminary analysis prepared by the City acting in its capacity as the CEQA Lead Agency, to determine the level of environmental review and scope of analysis that will be required for the Project under CEQA. This Initial Study presents and substantiates the City's determination regarding the type of CEQA compliance document that will be prepared for the Project, which the City determined will be an **Environmental Impact Report (EIR)**.

1.2 Potential Environmental Effects of the Proposed Project

The analysis presented in this Initial Study indicates that the proposed Project has the potential to result in one or more significant direct, indirect, and/or cumulatively considerable environmental effects under the following environmental subjects:

- Air Quality
- Biological Resources
- Cultural Resources
- Energy
- Geology and Soils

- Greenhouse Gas Emissions
- Noise
- Transportation
- Tribal Cultural Resources
- Utilities and Service Systems

Based on the analysis provided in the Environmental Checklist portion of this Initial Study, the proposed Project has the potential to result in significant effects on the environment for which feasible mitigation measures may or may not be available to reduce all of those effects to below thresholds of significance applied by the City. Accordingly, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines § 15063(b)(1), an EIR will be prepared for the Project and will focus on potential impacts to the environmental issue areas listed above.



2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SETTING

2.1 Project Overview

The Project involves the proposed development of a ± 25.12 -gross-acre (± 24.72 -net-acre) property (Project Site) in the City of San Bernardino, California, with a $\pm 557,000$ square foot (s.f.) industrial warehouse building and associated site improvements. To implement the Project, the Project Applicant (Fifth & Sterling, LLC) submitted an application to the City for a Development Permit Type-D (DP-D 23-13). The Project conforms with the Project Site's General Plan designation of "Industrial (I)" and Zoning designation of "Industrial Light (IL)."

2.2 Project Location

The Project Site that is the subject of this Initial Study is located within the City of San Bernardino, which is within the Valley subregion of San Bernardino County, north of Interstate-10, east of Interstate-215, and south and west of Interstate-210. More specifically, and as depicted on Figure 2-1, *Regional Map*, and Figure 2-2, *Vicinity Map*, the Project Site is located north of 5th Street, south of 6th Street, east of Sterling Avenue, and approximately 650 feet west of Lankershim Avenue. The Project Site encompasses Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 1192-211-01.

2.3 Environmental Setting and Surrounding Land Uses

As depicted on Figure 2-3, *USGS Topographic Map*, and Figure 2-4, *Aerial Photograph*, under existing conditions, the Project Site is undeveloped. The Project Site vicinity and surrounding areas contain a mixture of industrial, commercial, residential, and aviation land uses, with some parcels remaining undeveloped.

North: To the north of the Project Site is 6th Street, north of which are an industrial warehouse and vacant, undeveloped land designated for future industrial development. The industrial warehouse located north of 6th Street is occupied by Globe Electric/Weber Logistics. Further to the northeast and northwest are residential land uses including both single family homes and apartments.

East: To the east of the Project Site is Armada Towing, CAL Disposal Company, Inc. (a refuse collection service), and Castaway RV Storage. Land uses east of Lankershim Avenue include but are not limited to single-family residential homes, Highlanders Boxing Club Program (a boxing gym), and Highland Storage facility.

South: To the south of the Project Site is 5th Street, south of which is undeveloped land designated for future commercial development and south of which is 3rd Street. South of 3rd Street is the San Bernadino International Airport and an Amazon Air Freight Fulfillment Center. To the southeast of the Project Site is Wilson Towing, Good Auto & Truck Repair, Pride Auto Sales, VTTR towing service, and single-family residential homes. To the southwest of the Project Site is undeveloped land.

<u>West:</u> To the west of the Project Site is Sterling Avenue. West of Sterling Avenue is undeveloped land, an apartment complex, and two single-family residential homes. Further west are additional residential uses including apartments and single-family residential homes. Properties west of Sterling Avenue are located in the City of Highland.



2.4 Description of the Proposed Project

A. Development Permit Type-D (DP-D 23-13)

As depicted on Figure 2-5, *Proposed Development Plan*, the proposed Project evaluated herein involves the development of the Project Site with an industrial warehouse facility. The applicant is proposing development of the Project Site on a speculative basis, meaning that the building's occupant(s) would be determined at a later time and is not yet known. It is typical for building tenants to be unknown and not commit to a building lease until the building is entitled and a construction schedule is assured.

The proposed building is designed to have up to 557,000 s.f. of interior floor space, which includes up to 552,000 s.f. of warehouse space, and 5,000 s.f. of mezzanine space. An office would be located at the southwest corner of the building, with 5,000 s.f. on both the lower level and mezzanine level, for a total office space of 10,000 s.f. Eighty (80) dock doors are proposed on the south side of the building. The proposed site design includes 446 parking stalls, including 158 passenger vehicle stalls, 189 trailer stalls, 9 handicap stalls, 23 Electric Vehicle Charging Station (EVCS) stalls, and 67 future EVCS stalls, which would meet the City of San Bernardino parking requirements. Trailer parking stalls would be located on the south side of the building. Bicycle racks would also be provided at the southeast and southwest entrances to the building. The Project also includes the installation of associated site improvements, including drive aisles, parking areas, landscaping, utility infrastructure, exterior lighting, walls/fencing, and signage. Access to the Project Site would be provided via five driveways: two driveways connecting with Sterling Avenue for passenger vehicles only; two driveways connecting to 5th Street, the western driveway for trucks only and the eastern driveway for both passenger cars and trucks; and one driveway connecting to 6th Street for both passenger cars and trucks.



Project Description



Lead Agency: City of San Bernardino





0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet

Lead Agency: City of San Bernardino

Vicinity Map





Source(s): ESRI, USGS (2013)



USGS Topographic Map

Lead Agency: City of San Bernardino





Source(s): ESRI, NearMap Imagery (May 2023)



Lead Agency: City of San Bernardino

Figure 2-4

Aerial Photograph







Lead Agency: City of San Bernardino

Proposed Development Plan

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST AND ANALYSIS

Provided on the following pages is an Environmental Checklist, based on Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines. The Checklist evaluates the Project's potential to result in significant adverse effects to the physical environment. As concluded by the Checklist, the proposed Project has the potential to result in significant environmental effects for which feasible mitigation may not be available to reduce those effects below levels of significance. Accordingly, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines § 15063(b)(1), an EIR will be prepared for the Project.

INITIAL STUDY/ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO

- **1. Project Title:** 5th & Sterling
- Lead Agency Name and Address: City of San Bernardino Planning Division 201 North E Street, 3rd Floor San Bernardino, CA 92401
- 3. Contact Persons and Phone Number: Elizabeth Mora-Rodriguez: 909.384.7272 x 3075
- **4. Project Location:** South of 6th Street, north of 5th Street, east of Lankershim Avenue, and west of Sterling Avenue in the City of San Bernardino, California.
- Project Sponsor's Name and Address: Fifth & Sterling, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 26569 Community Center Drive Highland, CA 92346
- 6. General Plan Designation: Industrial (I)
- 7. Zoning: Industrial Light (IL)
- 8. Description of the Project: Proposed development of an approximately 25.12-gross-acre property with an industrial warehouse facility. The proposed building is designed to have up to 557,000 s.f. of interior floor space with 80 south-facing dock doors. Other features include interior drive aisles, parking areas for passenger vehicles and trucks and trailers, landscaping, utility infrastructure, exterior lighting, walls/fencing, and signage. Access to the Project Site would be provided via five driveways: two driveways connecting with Sterling Avenue for passenger vehicles only; two driveways connecting to 5th Street, the western driveway for trucks only and the eastern driveway for both passenger cars and trucks; and one driveway connecting to 6th Street for both passenger cars and trucks.
- **9.** Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The Project Site is located in the City of San Bernardino, north of Interstate-10, east of Interstate-215, and south and west of Interstate-210. The northern boundary of the Project Site is 6th Street, the southern boundary is 5th Street, and the western boundary is Sterling Avenue.



The surrounding area contains a mixture of industrial, commercial, aviation, and residential land uses, with some parcels remaining undeveloped.

10. Other public agencies whose approval is required: The Project may require discretionary and/or administrative approvals, which include, but are not necessarily limited to, approvals from the City of Highland; the San Bernardino County Fire Department; Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (RWQCB); and South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). Approvals from other public agencies, if required, will be described in the required EIR.

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:

The environmental factors checked below (\boxtimes) would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

	Aesthetics	\boxtimes	Greenhouse Gas Emissions		Public Services
	Agricultural Resources and Forestry Resources		Hazards & Hazardous Materials		Recreation
\boxtimes	Air Quality		Hydrology/Water Quality	\boxtimes	Transportation
\boxtimes	Biological Resources		Land Use/Planning	\boxtimes	Tribal Cultural Resources
\boxtimes	Cultural Resources		Mineral Resources	\boxtimes	Utilities/Service Systems
\boxtimes	Energy	\boxtimes	Noise		Wildfire
\boxtimes	Geology/Soils		Population/Housing	\boxtimes	Mandatory Findings of Significance



DETERMINATION: (To be completed by the Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.	
I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there	
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or	
agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.	
I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an	
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.	
I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potential significant impact" or "potentially significant	
unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect (1) has been adequately analyzed	
in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (2) has been addressed by	
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An	
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be	
addressed.	
I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because	
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION	
pursuant to applicable standards and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR	
or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the	
proposed project, nothing further is required.	

Jula Rod.

Signature

April 24, 2024

Date

Elizabeth Mora-Rodriguez Printed Name



EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

This section contains the Environmental Checklist for the Project and is based on the Initial Study Environmental Checklist (Checklist) included in Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, as most recently updated in December 2018. The Checklist is marked with findings as to the environmental effects of the Project. The evaluation of environmental impacts in this section has been undertaken, pursuant to the provisions of CEQA, to provide the City with the factual basis for determining, based on the information available, the form of environmental documentation the Project warrants. The basis for each of the findings is provided in the explanation of responses following the Checklist. References used to support the analyses are identified in the text and listed in Section 4.0 of this Initial Study.

- 1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).
- 2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts.
- 3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.
- 4) "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from "Earlier Analysis," as described in (5) below, may be cross-referenced).
- 5) Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063 (c) (3) (d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:
 - (a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.
 - (b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.
 - (c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.
- 6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or outside



document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.

- 7) Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.
- 8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected.
- 9) The analysis of each issue should identify:
 - (a) the significance criteria or threshold used to evaluate each question; and
 - (b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
I. AESTHETICS				
Would the Project:				
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?			\boxtimes	

(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a)

The Project Site is located in the City. The property is not designated as a scenic vista by the City's General Plan or any other relevant planning document. With respect to visual resources and scenic vistas, the General Plan indicates that the following areas could potentially benefit from sensitive treatment of land: Kendall Hills, San Bernardino Mountains, the hillsides adjacent to Arrowhead Springs, Lytle Creek Wash, East Twin Creeks Wash, the Santa Ana River, Badger Canyon, Bailey Canyon, and Waterman Canyon. (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, p. 12-22). The Project Site is located in the southeastern portion of the City and is not associated with any of these features. The San Bernardino Mountains, located north of the Project Site, is the only one of these features that is visible from the Project Site. Due to the orientation of the San Bernardino Mountains in relation to the Project Site (the mountains are located north of the Project Site and north of 6th Street), implementation of the Project would not alter views of the Mountains from 6th Street because the Project would not result in any improvements/alterations to the north side of 6th Street. The Project could partially obscure views of the San Bernardino Mountains from 5th Street, located south of the Project Site. The proposed Project's building would have a maximum height of 50.0 feet and other vertical features (walls, fences, landscaping, etc.) would be shorter and have substantially less mass than the building. Views of the San Bernardino Mountains would continue to be available above the building. Because public views of the San Bernardino Mountains would still be available from public viewing areas surrounding the Project Site and development on the site would be low in stature compared to the approximate 10,000-foot peak height of the mountain range, the Project would not have a substantial adverse effect on the mountain view and would have a less than significant impact on the San Bernardino Mountains scenic vista. Impacts would be less than significant and no further analysis of this topic is required.

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not		\boxtimes
limited to trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a		
state scenic highway?		

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; Caltrans GIS Map of State Designated and Eligible Scenic Highway, 2021)

There are no designated or eligible State scenic highways within the Project Site's immediate vicinity (Caltrans, 2021). The nearest designated State scenic highway is a segment of State Route 243 (SR 243), located approximately 24.1 miles southeast of the Project Site. The nearest eligible (but not yet designated) State scenic highways include a segment of State Route 330 (SR 330), located approximately 3.2 miles northeast of the Project Site, and a segment of State Route (SR) 38 located approximately 4.5 miles northeast of the Project Site. Due to the distance of these highways to the Project Site and the presence of intervening development and topography, the Project Site does not offer views of scenic resources from these road segments. Thus, implementation of the Project would not adversely affect views of scenic resources from any State-designated scenic highway and no further analysis of this topic is required.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual				\boxtimes
character or quality of public views the site and its surroundings				
(Public views are those that are experienced from publicly				
accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area,				
would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other				
regulations governing scenic quality?				

(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, 2023; USCB Urbanized Area Reference Map, 2012)

The United States Census Bureau defines "urbanized area" as a densely settled core of census tracts and/or census blocks that have 50,000 or more residents, and meet minimum population density requirements while also being adjacent to territory containing non-residential urban land uses. The Project Site is located within the boundaries of the Census-defined Riverside-San Bernardino urban area (USCB, 2012); therefore, the Project would be considered to result in a significant adverse impact under this threshold only if the Project design would conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality.

Specifically, regulations governing scenic quality are established through the City's Municipal Code and General Plan. The Project would be developed in compliance with applicable provisions of the City's Municipal Code, including established development standards as stipulated in Chapter 19.08. The property is designated by the General Plan as Industrial (I) and zoned Industrial Light (IL). The Project is consistent with the land use designation and zoning of the property, which is intended to retain, enhance, and intensify existing development and provide for the new development of lighter industrial uses along major vehicular, rail, and air transportation routes serving the City (City of San Bernardino, 2023, p. 1577). The City has established development standards in the Municipal Code to protect the visual and scenic quality of the City. The Project would not conflict with applicable development standards in the City's Municipal Code established for the Industrial Light zone. Thus, no impact would occur and no further analysis of this topic is required.

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would		\boxtimes	
adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?			

(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005)

The Project would introduce new sources of artificial light to the property, including parking lot lighting and building lighting. All new light sources associated with the Project would be required to comply with the City's Municipal Code standards for exterior lighting, which prevent light spillover, glare, nuisance, inconvenience, or hazardous interference of any kind on adjacent properties and streets. In particular, the City Municipal Code Section G19.08.050 would apply to the Project, which requires that all lighting be shielded to confine light spread within the site boundaries (City of San Bernardino, 2023, p. 1599). Furthermore, areas surrounding the Project Site to the north and east are developed with or planned for the development with urban uses, and Project-related lighting would be complementary to the lighting associated with these existing uses. A photometric plan has been prepared by Gregg Electric as part of the Project's Development Plan application



Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact

materials to demonstrate compliance with City Municipal Code lighting standards. There are no components of the Project-related lighting that could significantly and adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area. Thus, Project-related lighting impacts would be less than significant.

With respect to glare, a majority of the Project's building elements would consist of tilt-up concrete panels with no potential for glare, although the corners of the building would include glass elements. While window glazing has a potential to result in minor glare effects, such effects would not adversely affect daytime views of surrounding properties, including motorists along adjacent roadways, because the glass proposed is low-reflective. Furthermore, the Project would include landscaping and/or screen walls around the perimeter of the Project Site which would provide screening that would limit visibility of the proposed building from surrounding streets. Thus, glare impacts from proposed building elements would be less than significant. Solar photovoltaic panels located on the building roof are required by regulation to be found consistent with aviation activities at the San Bernardino International Airport as part of the building permit approval process; mandatory adherence to regulatory requirements assures that any glare producing features on the building including the roof would have less-than-significant impacts to aviation.

Based on the foregoing analysis, the Project would not create a new source of substantial light or glare and would not adversely affect daytime or nighttime views of the area. Impacts would be less than significant, and no further analysis of this topic is required.

II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES				
Would the Project:				
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of				\boxtimes
Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps				
prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring				
Program of the California Resources Agency to non-agricultural				
use?				
(Source: CDC CA Important Farmland Finder, 2018)				
Under existing conditions, the Project Site does not contain agr	icultural u	ses. According	g to the C	alifornia
Department of Conservation's (CDC) Farmland Mapping and Monito	oring Progra	am (FMMP), th	ne Project S	ite does
not contain any soils mapped as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland,	or Farmlan	d of Statewide	e Importan	ce (CDC,
2018). As such, the proposed Project has no potential to convert Pri	me Farmlar	nd, Unique Far	mland or F	armland
of Statewide Importance (Farmland), to non-agricultural use. Accord	dingly, no in	npact would o	ccur and no	o further

analysis is required on this subject.

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a		\boxtimes
Williamson Act contract?		
(Source: CDC CA Important Farmland Finder, 2018)		



Significant Mitigation Significant Impact		than ficant Dact
---	--	------------------------

Under existing conditions, the Project Site does not contain agricultural zoning. As mapped by the CDC, the Project Site also is not located on land that is subject to a Williamson Act contract (CDC, 2018). Under existing conditions, the Project Site is zoned "Industrial Light" (IL)." As such, the proposed Project has no potential to conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract. Based on the foregoing, the Project has no potential to impact lands zoned for agricultural use or conflict with any Williamson Act contracts. No impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this subject.

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?



(Source: USFS Interactive Visitor Map, 2021; Google Earth, 2023)

The Project Site is not located on lands designated as forest lands or timberlands by the City's General Plan, and none of the surrounding properties are designated as forest lands or timberlands. The San Bernardino National Forest is the nearest designated forestland and is located approximately 3.0 miles north of the Project Site with substantial intervening development (USFS, 2021). Furthermore, the Project Site is zoned "Industrial Light (IL)," and none of the surrounding properties are zoned for forestry- or timberland-related uses. Accordingly, no forests or any zoning for forest land or timberland are located on or near the Project Site. The proposed Project has no potential to conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g). No impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this subject.

D) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to		\boxtimes
non-forest use?		
(Courses LICEC Internative Visitor Man, 2021, Coopela Forth, 2022)		

(Source: USFS Interactive Visitor Map, 2021; Google Earth, 2023)

As noted in the preceding response, the Project Site is not located on or near forest land. Therefore, the proposed Project would not result in the loss of any forest land or convert forest land to non-forest use. No impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this subject.

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due			\boxtimes
to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland,			
to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest			
use?			
(Source: CDC CA Important Farmland Finder, 2018; Google Earth, 20	023)		



Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact

As noted in the preceding responses, the Project Site is not located on or near lands designated Farmland or forest land. There is no Farmland, forest land, or timberland near the Project Site. As such, the proposed Project has no potential to involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use, or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. Therefore, no impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this subject.

III. AIR QUALITY

Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air	\boxtimes		
quality plan?			

(Source: SCAQMD AQMP, 2022)

The Project Site is located in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB). Air quality within the SCAB is regulated by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). Standards for air quality are documented in the SCAQMD's Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP), as most recently updated in December 2022 (SCAQMD, 2022). The proposed Project would result in the emission of air pollutants into the SCAB during short-term construction and long-term operational activities, including from vehicles that travel to and from the Project Site. The Project's construction and operational activities would emit pollutants, thereby potentially conflicting with or obstructing implementation of the SCAQMD's AQMP. As such, an air quality technical report will be prepared and the required EIR will evaluate the proposed Project's potential to conflict with the adopted SCAQMD AQMP.

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any	\boxtimes		
criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment			
under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?			

(Source: SCAQMD AQMP, 2022)

Air quality within the SCAB is regulated by the SCAQMD and standards for air quality are documented in the SCAQMD AQMP, as most recently updated in December 2022. Implementation of the proposed Project has the potential to exceed daily air pollutant emission significance thresholds established by the SCAQMD's AQMP, particularly related to construction and mobile-source emissions associated with the Project's long-term operation. Accordingly, an air quality technical report will be prepared and Project-related air emissions will be modeled using the SCAQMD's California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod[™]). The purpose of this model is to calculate estimated construction-source and operational-source air quality emissions for criteria pollutants from direct and indirect sources. The required EIR will quantify the Project's expected pollutant levels and evaluate the potential to exceed local air quality standards and/or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation.



							Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
c)	Expose	sensitive	receptors	to	substantial	pollutant	\boxtimes			
conc	entrations	s?								

(Source: California Air Resources Board Maps of State and Federal Area Designations, 2022)

The Project Site is located in a portion of the SCAB that is in non-attainment status for State air quality standards pertaining to ozone (O_3 ; 1-hour standard and 8-hour standard) and particulate matter smaller than 10 microns (PM_{10}). The portion of the SCAB in which the Project Site is located also is in non-attainment status for federal standards concerning O_3 and PM_{10} (CARB, 2022). The Project design does not include any features that may be considered point source emitters. However, the Project has the potential to expose sensitive receptors located near the Project Site and along the truck route used by Project-related vehicles to diesel particulate matter (DPM) emissions from mobile sources (i.e., vehicle and truck exhaust). Due to the presence of sensitive receptors in the vicinity and the truck traffic expected to be generated by the Project, the required EIR will evaluate the Project's potential to expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations.

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors)		\boxtimes	
adversely affecting a substantial number of people?			

(Source: South Coast Air Quality Management District; City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, 2023)

Any temporary odor impacts generated by construction activities on the Project Site, such as asphalt paving and the application of architectural coatings, would be short-term and cease upon completion of the construction phase of the Project. Additionally, such odors would not affect a substantial number of people, based on the proximity and nature of land uses surrounding the Project Site (i.e., primarily undeveloped land, commercial, industrial, and residential land uses). The warehouse use proposed for the Project Site is not expected to involve activities that generate substantial or noticeable amounts of odor during long-term operation. Additionally, the Project would be subject to SCAQMD Rule 402, "Nuisance" that controls odors by prohibiting air contaminants or other material which cause injury, detriment, nuisance, or annoyance to any considerable number of persons or to the public, or which endanger the comfort, repose, health or safety of any such persons or the public, or which cause, or have a natural tendency to cause, injury or damage to business or property. For the control of odors associated with stored waste, the City's solid waste regulations (Chapter 8.24 of the City's Municipal Code) requires solid waste to be stored within enclosed containers and prohibits the storage of solid waste in a manner that would present a public nuisance. Accordingly, mandatory compliance with regulatory requirements will ensure that any odor effects would be less than significant, and no further analysis of this topic is required.

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through	\boxtimes	
habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate,		
sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans,		
policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish		
and Wildlife or U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service?		

 \square



Potentially Significant	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant	No Impact
Impact	Incorporated	Impact	mpace

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan EIR, 2005b; USFWS Critical Habitat Portal, 2023a)

Under existing conditions, the Project Site is undeveloped and disturbed and is unlikely to support species identified as candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Figure 5.3-1 of the City's 2005 General Plan Update EIR indicates that the Project Site is not located within any areas identified as containing potential habitat for sensitive wildlife species, while Figure 5.3-2 shows that the Project Site is not located within any Biological Resource Areas or Riparian Corridors (City of San Bernardino, 2005b). Additionally, the Project Site does not contain USFWS mapped critical habitat (USFWS, 2023a). Nonetheless, a qualified biologist will evaluate the Site's existing biological resources and determine the presence or absence of any sensitive species. The results of the biological resources assessment will be disclosed and evaluated in the required EIR.

b) Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or		\boxtimes
other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional		
plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish		
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?		

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; USFWS Critical Habitat Portal, 2023a)

Based on a review of aerial photography and a field view, a large majority (approximately 99%) of the Project Site consists of previously disturbed land that is currently vacant, undeveloped, and vegetated with non-native plants and anthropogenic activities. To that end, the Project Site does not contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Because no such resources exist, the Project has no potential to impact these resources and no further analysis of this topic is required.

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected		\boxtimes
wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool,		
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological		
interruption, or other means?		

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; USFWS National Wetland Inventory, 2023b)

The Project Site is an upland, supporting no riparian or riverine habitats, and based on a review of aerial photography and a field view, there are no indicators of well-defined water conveyance bed, bank or channel. The topography suggests that the Project Site lacks waters subject to the Clean Water Act, or Fish and Game Code Section 1600 jurisdiction. Furthermore, the National Wetland Inventory has no records of special aquatic resources within the Project Site (USFWS, 2023b). As such, no further analysis of this topic is required.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact				
D) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident or	\boxtimes							
migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native								
resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native								
wildlife nursery sites?								
(Source: Google Earth, 2023)								
since Under existing conditions, the Project Site is undeveloped and disturbed. The Project site does not contain any natural bodies of water, and there is no potential for the Project to interfere with the movement of fish. Due to the urbanized nature of the Project Site and surroundings, the Project has no potential to result in impacts to terrestrial migratory wildlife corridors. Notwithstanding, development of the Project Site has some								
potential to impact avian species that are protected by the rederal	i Migratory	Bird Treaty A	ct or nesti	ng birds				
protected by California law. The Project's potential to impact wildli	fe moveme	ent and migrat	ory and/or	nesting				
birds during construction and long-term operation will be evaluated	d in the req	uired EIR.						
e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting				\boxtimes				
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or								
ordinance?								
(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023)								
City of San Bernardino Municipal Code Section 19.28.100 requires the issuance of a tree removal permit in the event that more than five trees are to be cut down, uprooted, destroyed, or removed within a 36-month period. The Project Site contains three trees that would be removed as part of the Project; as such, the issuance of a tree removal permit would not be required because fewer than five trees would be removed. There are no additional local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources that are applicable to the Project or Project Site. Therefore, no impact would occur and no further analysis of this topic is required.								
f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Conservation Community Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?				\boxtimes				
There is no adopted habitat conservation plan, natural conservation community plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan applicable to the City or the Project Site. Accordingly, the Project would have no potential to conflict with any such plans, and no impact would occur. No further analysis of this topic is necessary.								
Would the project:								
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a	\boxtimes							
historical resource as defined in Section 15064.5?	لا]					
(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023)								

	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--	--------------------------------------	---	------------------------------------	--------------

Although the Project Site does not contain any known historical resources and is not known to be associated with any important people or events in California history, a professional archaeologist will conduct archival research and perform a site survey and document their findings in a cultural resources report. The cultural resources report will indicate whether there is a reasonable potential for discovery of significant historical resources that may be buried beneath the surface of the Project Site such that the Project's construction would cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of such historical resources. The results of the evaluation will be disclosed in the Project's EIR.

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an	\boxtimes		
archaeological resources pursuant to Section 15064.5?			

(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan EIR, 2005b)

The Project Site is not known to contain significant archaeological resources and is unlikely to contain significant discoverable subsurface archaeological resources due to the site being previously disturbed and overlain with artificial fill. Also, the surface sediments on the Project Site and in the Project Site's vicinity are primarily Holocene-age sand and gravel associated with alluvial fans and/or active stream channels (SoCal Geotechnical, 2024). The origins of these sediments are closely related to City Creek, which once flowed roughly 1,000 feet south of the project location prior to channelization, and to the Santa Ana River about one mile further to the south, which was historically prone to widespread flooding events before the construction of Seven Oaks Dam upstream and other flood control projects. Given the Project Site's location in the previous floodplains of these waterways, the Project location would not have been considered a favorable environment for long-term settlement in prehistoric times, nor would the setting be conducive for the preservation of subsurface archaeological deposits. Also, any cultural remains encountered in this area would be of questionable contextual integrity, as their occurrence may have resulted from secondary deposition by fluvial activities on City Creek or the Santa Ana River. Furthermore, the ground surface across a majority of the Project Site has been disturbed in the past by agricultural operations and, later, residential construction activities, which have left little vestige of the native landscape. Consequently, the subsurface sediments on the Project Site have a low sensitivity for potentially significant archaeological deposits of prehistoric origin. Nonetheless, a professional archaeologist will conduct archival research and perform a site survey and document their findings in a cultural resources report. The cultural resources report will indicate whether Project implementation would cause a potential, substantial adverse change in the significance of any archeological resources. The results of the evaluation will be disclosed in the Project's EIR. Tribal cultural resources are addressed in the Tribal Cultural Resources section below.

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of		\boxtimes	
formal cemeteries?			
(Source: Google Earth, 2023; California Public Resources Code Secti	on 5097)		



Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact

There are no known cemeteries at the Project Site and no known formal cemeteries are located within the immediate site vicinity. While not expected, in the unlikely event that human remains are discovered during ground-disturbing activities required to implement the proposed Project, compliance with the applicable provisions of California Health and Safety Code § 7050.5 as well as Public Resources Code § 5097 *et. Seq.* would be required. Mandatory compliance with these provisions of State law would ensure that impacts to human remains, if unearthed during construction activities, would be appropriately treated. No significant impact would occur with mandatory compliance with the Public Resources Code and no further analysis is required on this topic.

VI. ENERGY			
Would the project:			
a) Result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy, or			
wasteful use of energy resources, during project construction or	X		
operation?			

Project-related construction and operational activities would use local energy resources, including gasoline, diesel fuel, and electricity. An energy resources analysis report will be prepared to evaluate whether implementation of the Project would result in potentially significant environmental impacts due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources. The findings of this report will be disclosed in the Project's EIR.

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable	\square		
energy or energy efficiency?			

The Project's potential to conflict with applicable plans, policies, or regulations related to renewable energy or energy efficiency will be analyzed in an energy resources analysis report, the results of which will be disclosed in the Project's EIR.

VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Would the project:

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:

(i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the	
most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by	
the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial	
evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology	
Special Publication 42.	

(Source: City of San Bernardino, 2005a; Google Earth, 2023; SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)

 \times



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact		
According to a site-specific geotechnical study prepared for the Project Site by Southern California Geotechnical						
and dated February 16, 2024, the Project Site is not located on or near a known earthquake fault as delineated						
on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map	issued by	the State Geo	logist (City	y of San		
Bernardino, 2005a, Figure S-3). Because there are no known faults located on the Project site, there is no						
potential for the Project to expose people or structures to adverse effects related to ground rupture. No impact						
would occur and no further analysis is required on this topic.						

(Source: City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, 2023; California Building Standards Code; SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)

According to a site-specific geotechnical study prepared for the Project Site by Southern California Geotechnical and dated February 16, 2024, thethe Project Site is located in a seismically active area of Southern California and is expected to experience moderate-to-severe ground shaking during the lifetime of the Project. This risk is not considered substantially different than that of other properties throughout Southern California. As a condition of Project approval, the Project would be required to be constructed in accordance with the California Building Standards Code (CBSC, Title 24, Part 11 of the California Code of Regulations) and the City of San Bernardino Building Code (Chapter 15.04 of the City of San Bernardino Municipal Code), which incorporates the CBSC with minor exceptions and changes to ensure applicability of the requirements within the City of San Bernardino (City of San Bernardino, 2023). The CBSC and City of San Bernardino Building Code have been specifically tailored for California earthquake conditions and provide standards that must be met to safeguard life or limb, health, property, and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, construction, quality of materials, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of all buildings and structures. In addition, the CBSC (Chapter 18) requires development projects to prepare geologic engineering reports to identify site-specific geologic and seismic conditions and provide site-specific recommendations including, but not limited to, recommendations related to ground stabilization, selection of appropriate foundation type and depths, and selection of appropriate structural systems, to preclude adverse effects resulting from strong seismic groundshaking. A geotechnical report has been prepared for the Project and adherence to its recommendations will be evaluated in the EIR and presented as mitigation measures in the EIR. ensuring that impacts associated with seismic ground shaking would be less than significant (SoCal Geotechnical, 2023). A less than significant impact would occur with adherence to the CBSC, City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, and the Project's geotechnical report's recommendations and no further analysis is required on this topic.

(iii)	(iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?					[\times									
			-		-			-			-		-	 		

(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a; County of San Bernardino Geologic Hazard Overlap Map, 2023; SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)

According to San Bernardino General Plan Figure S-5, *Liquefaction Zones*, the Project Site is not located in an area with the potential for liquefaction (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Figure S-5). However, the San Bernardino County Land Use Plan, Geologic Hazard Overlays, San Bernardino South Quadrangle, FH30 C Map indicates that



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--	--------------------------------------	---	------------------------------------	--------------

the Project Site is located within a zone of liquefaction susceptibility (San Bernardino County, 2023). The potential for ground failure as a result of liquefaction was thus studied in a site-specific geotechnical study prepared for the Project Site by Southern California Geotechnical and dated February 16, 2024.

The results of the site-specific liquefaction analysis identified a potentially liquefiable soil layer at one of the Project site's boring locations (Boring No. B-1). Settlement analyses was conducted for the boring locations and for the potentially liquefiable layer. The total dynamic settlement for each boring location, based on the results of the dynamic settlement analyses (presented in Appendix F of the Project's geotechnical study) ranged from 0.39 inches to zero inches, which would result in differential settlements of up to only one-quarter inch during a liquefaction inducing seismic event. The estimated differential settlement could be assumed to occur across a distance of 50 feet, indicating a maximum angular distortion of less than 0.001 inches per inch. Based on this evaluation of potential settlement, Southern California Geotechnical recommended no design considerations for the Project (SoCal Geotechnical, 2024). As such, impacts associated with liquefaction would be less than significant and no further analysis is required on the topic of liquefaction. Regarding the potential for other types of seismic-related ground failures, artificial fill soils were encountered at all of the boring locations, extending from the ground surface to depths of approximately 2.0 to 5.5 feet. These soils, in their present condition, are not considered suitable for support of the foundation loads of the proposed warehouse structure. Southern California Geotechnical included site preparation, building foundation, building floor slab, and pavement recommendations in the Project's geotechnical study, which will be presented as mitigation measures in the EIR (SoCal Geotechnical, 2024). As such, this topic will be further evaluated in the EIR.

(iv) Landslides?			\boxtimes
	<u> </u>	1 202 1	

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a; SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)

According to San Bernardino General Plan Figure S-7, *Slope Stability and Major Landslides*, the Project Site is not located in an area which has a known susceptibility to landslides (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Figure S-7). Furthermore, the Project Site is relatively flat and is approximately 3.0 miles south of the nearest location identified by the San Bernardino General Plan as containing the potential for landslide hazards (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Figure S-7). Accordingly, the proposed Project would not expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death, involving landslides, and no further analysis is required on this subject.

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?		\boxtimes	
(Source: SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)			

Project construction activities would disturb the Project Site and expose subsurface soils, which would temporarily increase erosion susceptibility. The Project would be required to adhere to standard regulatory requirements, including, but not limited to, requirements imposed by the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal Stormwater Permit and a Project-specific Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) to minimize water pollutants including



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact			
sedimentation in stormwater runoff. With mandatory compliance	to these r	egulatory requ	uirements,	impacts			
associated with soil erosion and/or the loss of topsoil are assured to	be less that	an significant.	No further	analysis			
is required on this topic.							
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that	\boxtimes						
would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially							
result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,							
liquefaction or collapse?							
(Source: SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)							
The potential for ground failure was studied in a site-specific geotechnical study prepared for the Project Site							

by Southern California Geotechnical and dated February 16, 2024. Artificial fill soils were encountered at all of the boring locations, extending from the ground surface to depths of approximately 2.0 to 5.5 feet. These soils, in their present condition, are not considered suitable for support of the foundation loads of the proposed Project's warehouse structure. Southern California Geotechnical included site preparation, building foundation, building floor slab, and pavement recommendations in the Project's geotechnical study, which will be evaluated in the EIR and presented as mitigation measures in the EIR (SoCal Geotechnical, 2024). As such, this topic will be further evaluated in the EIR.

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the		\boxtimes
Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or		
property?		

(Source: SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)

A site-specific geotechnical study was prepared for the Project Site by Southern California Geotechnical and dated February 16, 2024. No expansive soils were identified and the Project Site does not have the potential to contain expansive soils. As such, no impact associated with expansive soils would occur and further analysis is not required on this subject.

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic		\boxtimes
tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers		
are not available for the disposal of waste water?		

(Source: Project Application Materials)

The Project does not include the installation of any septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems, as the warehouse building would connect to the City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department's sewer system. Thus, no impact would occur and further analysis is not required on this subject.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource				\boxtimes
or site or unique geologic feature?				
or site or unique geologic feature?				

(Source: SoCal Geotechnical, 2024)

The Project Site contains artificial fill at depths of approximately 2.0 to 5.5 feet and alluvium to depths extending to 50+ feet below ground surface. The near surface Quaternary (Pleistocene to Holocene) younger alluvial fan deposits consists of medium dense to very dense silty sands, sandy silts, and poorly- to well-graded sands with varying amounts of fine to coarse gravel, cobbles, and boulders, extending to depths of 12 to 25± feet below existing site grades. The artificial fill and younger alluvium have a low paleontological sensitivity and no reasonable potential to yield significant paleontological resources. As such, no impact would occur and further analysis is not required on this topic.

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS Would this project: a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

(Source: Project Application Materials)

Construction and operational activities associated with the Project would emit air pollutants, several of which are regarded as greenhouse gasses (GHGs). GHG emissions associated with the proposed Project would primarily be associated with tailpipe emissions from Project-related traffic. In addition, construction activities, energy consumption, water consumption, and solid waste generation also would contribute to the overall generation of GHGs. Specifically, construction and operational activities would result in the emissions of carbon dioxide (CO₂), nitrogen dioxide (NO₂), and methane (CH₄), which are GHGs. A GHG emissions analysis will be prepared to quantify and evaluate the Project's GHG emissions. Because climate change is a global phenomenon and not limited to a specific locale such as the Project Site and its immediate vicinity, emissions have the potential to be significant on a cumulatively considerable basis. The proposed Project's potential to generate GHGs, either directly or indirectly, that could have a significant impact on the environment, will be analyzed in a GHG analysis report which will be discussed in the required EIR.

for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?	b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted	\boxtimes		
	for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?			

(Source: Project Application Materials)

The City of San Bernardino does not have an adopted Climate Action Plan. The Project's potential impacts due to GHG emissions will be assessed in the required GHG emissions report based on consistency with Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32) and Senate Bill 32 (SB 32), which are the primary policies/regulations adopted in the State of California to reduce GHG emissions. The EIR will document the findings of the Project-specific GHG emissions report and will evaluate the Project for consistency with applicable plans, policies, and regulations adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions, including, but not limited to, AB 32 and SB 32.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS				
Would the project:				
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment			\boxtimes	
through the routine transport, use or disposal of hazardous				
materials?				

(Source: Project Application Materials)

During Project construction, limited amounts of hazardous materials typical of construction activities would be transported to, stored, and used on the Project Site (e.g., fuel, lubricants, architectural coatings). Also, although future building user(s) are unknown at this time, limited amounts of hazardous materials may be used and stored on the Project Site as part of routine business operations. Mandatory compliance with regulatory requirements pertaining to the transport, use, and disposal of hazardous materials would ensure that impacts would be less than significant. There are no reasonably foreseeable circumstances associated with the Project's construction or operation that would result in a significant hazard to the public or the environment associated with standard construction and operational practices. A less than significant impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this topic.

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment								
through r	eason	ably fore	seea	ble upset ar	nd accident	condi	tions	
involving	the	release	of	hazardous	materials	into	the	
environme	ent?							

	\boxtimes	

(Source: Project Application Materials)

As indicated in the response to Threshold IX(a), above, limited amounts of hazardous materials typical of construction activities would be transported to, stored, and used on the Project Site during Project construction and limited amounts of hazardous materials may be used and stored on the Project Site as part of routine business operations. Mandatory compliance with regulatory requirements pertaining to the transport, use, and disposal of hazardous materials would ensure that impacts would be less than significant. There are no reasonably foreseeable circumstances associated with the Project's construction or operation that would result in a significant hazard to the public or the environment associated with standard construction and operational practices. A less than significant impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this topic.

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely		\boxtimes
hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter		
mile of an existing or proposed school?		

(Source: Google Earth, 2023)

The Project Site is not located within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school (Google Earth, 2023). The nearest existing school facilities to the Project Site are Warm Springs Elementary School (approximately



Potentially Significant	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant	No Impact
impact	In a sum sus to d	impact	

0.4-mile to the north) and Indian Springs High School (approximately 0.5-mile to the northwest). The proposed warehouse operation at the Project Site would be conducted mainly inside of the enclosed building, where a variety of consumer products would likely be stored. The Project does not include any land uses that may be considered point source emitters. Accordingly, the proposed Project would not emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school, and no impact would occur. Thus, no further analysis is required on this subject.

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous		\boxtimes
materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section		
65962.5 and, as a result would it create a significant hazard to the		
public or the environment?		

(Source: DTSC EnviroStor Database, n.d.)

The California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) maintains several lists of contaminated sites that are identified as meeting the "Cortese List" requirements for hazardous materials sites. A review of the CalEPA's Cortese List Data Resources indicates that the Project Site is not included on any list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code 65962.5 (DTSC, n.d.). As such, no impact would occur and further analysis of this topic is not required.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where		\boxtimes	
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public			
airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety			
hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the			
project area?			

(Source: SBIAA, Airport Layout Plan, 2010; Google Earth, 2023; FAA, 2023)

The San Bernardino International Airport (SBIA) property is located 0.2-mile south of the Project Site. The Project entails the development of a warehouse building, which is not a noise-sensitive use. Also, the Project Site is not subject to incompatible aircraft noise, as it is located outside of the SBIA's projected 65 decibel (dBA) CNEL noise contour (SBIAA, 2010, Exhibit 4H).. The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has issued a Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation for the Project (FAA, 2023). Therefore, there is no reasonable potential for the Project to result in significant safety hazards or noise exposure for people working or visiting on and around the Project Site. Accordingly, further analysis on this subject is not required.

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an		\boxtimes
adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?		

(Source: Project Application Materials; Google Earth, 2023)

The Project Site does not contain any emergency facilities nor does it serve as an emergency evacuation route. During construction and long-term operation, the City of San Bernardino and the San Bernardino County Fire

Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact

Department will require adequate emergency access for emergency vehicles. As part of the Project's application review process, and during subsequent review and approval processes for building permits, the City of San Bernardino and County of San Bernardino Fire Departments are responsible for reviewing the Project's application materials to ensure that appropriate emergency ingress and egress would be available to-and-from the Project Site and that the Project would not substantially impede emergency response times in the local area. Accordingly, implementation of the Project would not impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or an emergency evacuation plan, and no impact would occur. Further analysis of this topic is not required.

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a		\boxtimes	
significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires?			

(Source: CalFire FHSZ Viewer, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2003a; City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, 2023)

The Project Site is not located within a State Responsibility Area or a very high fire hazard severity zone. Neither Cal Fire nor the City of San Bernardino identify the Project Site within an area susceptible to wildland fires (CalFire, 2023; City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Figure S-9). As a condition of Project approval, the Project would be required to be constructed in accordance with the California Building Standards Code (CBSC, Title 24, Part 11 of the California Code of Regulations) and the City of San Bernardino Building Code (Chapter 15.04 of the City of San Bernardino Municipal Code), which incorporates the CBSC with minor exceptions and changes to ensure applicability of the requirements within the City of San Bernardino (City of San Bernardino, 2023). The Building Code requires a minimum level of fire protection facilities, such as fire sprinklers and hydrants. Additionally, site improvements, including irrigated landscaping, would reduce the Project's potential to cause or be affected by wildland fire hazards. As such, impacts would be less than significant and further analysis of this topic is not required.

X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge		\boxtimes	
requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or			
ground water quality?			

(Source: City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, 2023; RWQCB NPDES Permit, 2010; Kimley-Horn, 2023)

Construction-Related Water Quality

According to a site-specific preliminary drainage report prepared for the Project Site by Kimley-Horn and dated June 2023, impacts to hydrology and water quality would be less than significant. Construction of the Project would involve site preparation, grading, paving, utility installation, building construction, and landscaping activities, which have the potential to generate water quality pollutants such as silt, debris, organic waste, and chemicals (e.g., paints, solvents). Should these materials come into contact with water that reaches the groundwater table or flows off-site to a public storm drain, the potential exists for the Project's construction activities to adversely affect water quality. As such, short-term water quality impacts have the potential to



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--	--------------------------------------	---	------------------------------------	--------------

occur during construction in the absence of any protective or avoidance measures. However, pursuant to the requirements of the Santa Ana RWQCB and City of San Bernardino (San Bernardino Municipal Code Chapter 8.80), the Project Applicant would be required to obtain coverage under the State's General Construction Storm Water Permit for construction activities (NPDES permit), which would reduce impacts to less than significant.

An NPDES permit is required for all development projects that include construction activities, such as clearing, grading, and/or excavation, that disturb at least one acre of total land area. In addition, the Project Applicant would be required to comply with the Santa Ana RWQCB's Santa Ana River Basin Water Quality Control Program. Compliance with the NPDES permit and the Santa Ana River Basin Water Quality Control Program involves the preparation and implementation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for construction-related activities. The SWPPP would specify the Best Management Practices (BMPs) that the Project's construction contractors would be required to implement during construction activities to ensure that potential pollutants of concern are prevented, minimized, and/or otherwise appropriately treated prior to being discharged from the subject property. Mandatory compliance with the SWPPP would ensure that the proposed Project does not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements during construction activities. Therefore, water quality impacts associated with construction activities would be less than significant and no further analysis of this topic is required.

Post Development Water Quality

Storm water pollutants that may be produced during Project operation include pathogens (bacterial/virus), phosphorous, nitrogen, sediment, metals, oil/grease, trash/debris, pesticides/herbicides, and other organic compounds. To meet the requirements of the County's NPDES permit and in accordance with Chapter 8.80 (Storm Water Drainage System) of the City of San Bernardino Municipal Code, the Project Applicant would be required to prepare and implement a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). A WQMP is a site-specific post-construction water quality management program designed to minimize the release of potential waterborne pollutants, including pollutants of concern for downstream receiving waters, via Best Management Practices (BMPs). Implementation of the WQMP ensures on-going, long-term protection of the vatershed basin. Compliance with the required WQMP would be required as a condition of approval for the Project. Long-term maintenance of on-site water quality features also would be required as a condition of approval to ensure the long-term effectiveness of all on-site water quality features.

Additionally, the NDPES program requires certain land uses, including the industrial land use proposed by the Project, to prepare a SWPPP for operational activities and to implement a long-term water quality sampling and monitoring program, unless an exemption has been granted. The Project Applicant or any successor in interest would be required to prepare a SWPPP for operational activities and implement a long-term water quality sampling and monitoring program or receive an exemption. Because the permit is dependent upon a detailed accounting of all operational activities and procedures, and the SWPPP (or exemption thereto) would be prepared at the time the Project's building users and their operational characteristics are known. However, based on the performance requirements of the NPDES Industrial General Permit, it is reasonably assured that mandatory compliance with all applicable water quality regulations would further reduce potential water quality impacts during the Project's long-term operation. (RWQCB, 2010)



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--	--------------------------------------	---	------------------------------------	--------------

Based on the foregoing analysis, implementation of the Project would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality during long-term operation. Impacts would be less than significant, and no further analysis of this topic is required.

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?

	\boxtimes	

(Source: Project Application Materials; WSC UWMP, 2017; Kimley-Horn, 2023)

The Project would be served with potable water from the City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department , and the Project Applicant does not propose the use of any wells or other groundwater extraction activities. Therefore, the Project would not directly draw water from the groundwater table. Accordingly, implementation of the proposed Project would not directly deplete or decrease groundwater supplies and the Project's impact to groundwater supplies would be less than significant.

According to a Preliminary Drainage Report prepared for the Project Site by Kimley-Horn and dated June 2023, development of the Project would increase impervious surface coverage on the Project Site, which would, in turn, reduce the amount of water percolating down into the underground aquifer that underlies the Project site and surrounding areas (i.e., Bunker Hill Groundwater Basin). The Bunker Hill Groundwater Basin is a part of the San Bernardino Basin Area, and is among the most rigorously managed groundwater basins in the State. Planning and management efforts evaluating needs and supplies have been established for most of the basins within the watershed through the next 20 to 40 years. Groundwater extractions and conditions are monitored and tracked by the Western-San Bernardino Watermaster and the Basin Technical Advisory Committee. Groundwater is managed in accordance with a legal settlement that, in part, identifies a natural safe yield and requires groundwater replenishment if cumulative extractions exceed water rights allocation. (WSC, 2017, pp. 2-7 to 2-8) Due to the extensive management of the groundwater basin, implementation of the Project would not interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the Project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin. Additionally, the Project includes design features that would maximize the percolation of on-site storm water runoff into the groundwater basin, such as a detention basin and permeable landscape areas. Furthermore, runoff from the Project Site would be conveyed to existing drainage facilities, which ultimately would convey flows to downstream areas where infiltration would occur (e.g., the Santa Ana River and Prado Dam). Accordingly, buildout of the Project with these design features would not interfere substantially with groundwater recharge of the Bunker Hill Groundwater Basin. Impacts would be less than significant, and further analysis of this subject is not required.

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:
(i) Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site;
C

(Source: Project Application Materials, Kimley-Horn, 2023)

According to a hydrology study prepared by Kimley-Horn, titled Preliminary Drainage Study and dated June 2023, the Project would alter existing ground contours of the Project Site and install impervious surfaces, which



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
would result in changes to the site's existing, internal drainage path	terns. Alth	ough the Proje	ect would a	alter the
subject property's internal drainage patterns, such changes would	not result i	n substantial o	erosion or	siltation
on- or off-site – either during construction or during long-term ope	ration – as	described und	ler the resp	oonse to
Threshold X(a). Accordingly, implementation of the Project would r	esult in a le	ess than signifi	cant impac	t due to
erosion and siltation, and further analysis of this topic is not required.				
(ii) Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in			\square	
a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site:				
(Kimley-Horn, 2023)				
A hydrology study, prepared by Kimley-Horn, titled Preliminar	y Drainage	e Study and	dated Jun	e 2023,
demonstrates that the Project would not result in a substantial char	nge in the r	ate or amount	of runoff f	rom the
Project Site. Water running off the Project Site is required to be e	equal to or	less than wha	t occurs ui	nder the
existing condition. The Project is designed such that water runo	ff from the	e site would b	e conveve	d via an
underground storm drain system, precluding the potential for floo	ding on-or	off-site as a re	esult of the	Proiect
and as such, further analysis of this topic is not required.				, ,
(iii) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the			\boxtimes	
capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or				
provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or				
(Source: Project Application Materials; Kimley-Horn, 2023)		L	I	
As indicated under the analysis of Threshold X(c)(ii), a hydrolo	gy study p	prepared by K	imley-Hor	n, titled
Preliminary Drainage Study and dated June 2023, has been prepare	d for the Pi	oject and dem	nonstrates	that the
Project would not exceed the capacity of the existing or planned st	ormwater	drainage syste	m. Water	running
off the Project Site is required to be equal to or less than what occu	irs under th	e existing con	dition and	as such,
further analysis of this topic is not required.		C		
(iv) Impede or redirect flood flows?				\boxtimes
(Source: FEMA NFHL Viewer, 2016; Kimley-Horn, 2023)		L	I	
According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEM	IA) Flood I	nsurance Rate	e Map (FIF	RM) No.
06071C8701J. the Project Site is located within "Flood Zone X (unshaded)." which includes "Areas determined				
to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain" (FEMA, 2016). Accordingly, development on the Project Site				
would have no potential to place housing, or other structures, within a 100-year floodplain or impede or redirect				
flood flows within a 100-year floodplain. No impact would occur. No further analysis is required: therefore.				
this issue will not be addressed in detail in the EIR.				
d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of				\boxtimes
pollutants due to project inundation?				



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--	--------------------------------------	---	------------------------------------	--------------

(Source: Google Earth, 2023)

The Project Site is located approximately 1.2-mile north of the Santa Ana River, and 50 miles northeast of the Pacific Ocean (Google Earth, 2023). Accordingly, the Project Site is not susceptible to impacts associated with tsunamis, and there are no large bodies of water in the Project vicinity capable of producing seiches that could affect the Project Site. Accordingly, the Project would not risk release of pollutants due to inundation. No impact would occur. No further analysis is required; therefore, this issue will not be addressed in detail in the EIR.

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality		\boxtimes	
control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?			

(Source: RWQCB Santa Ana River Basin Plan, 2019; Kimley-Horn, 2023)

As indicated under the analysis of Thresholds X(a) and X(b), the Project would not result in impacts associated with sustainable management of the San Bernardino Basin Area and would not contribute substantial amounts of pollutants that could adversely affect groundwater quality; thus, impacts would be less than significant. The applicable water quality control plan for the area is the Santa Ana Region Basin Plan ("Basin Plan"), which was most recently updated by the RWQCB in June 2019 (RWQCB, 2019). As indicated under the analysis of Threshold X(a), the Project would be required to implement a SWPPP for construction-related activities. The SWPPP would specify the BMPs that the Project's construction contractors would be required to implement during construction activities to ensure that potential pollutants of concern are prevented, minimized, and/or otherwise appropriately treated prior to being discharged from the subject property. Additionally, long-term operation of the Project would require compliance with the applicable NPDES permit and City of San Bernardino Municipal Code Chapter 8.80 (Storm Water Drainage System), which include requirements to prepare and implement a WQMP as well as a SWPPP, and to incorporate and maintain long-term BMPs to address potential water quality pollutants. Implementation of these requirements would ensure that the Project does not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the Basin Plan, and would ensure impacts would be less than significant. Accordingly, no further analysis of this topic is required.

XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING		
Would the project:		
a) Physically divide an established community?		\boxtimes
(Source: Google Earth, 2023)		

Development of the Project would not physically disrupt or divide the arrangement of an established community. 6th Street forms the northern boundary of the Project Site; 5th Street forms the southern boundary of the Project Site; Sterling Avenue forms the western boundary to the Project Site; and property to the east of the Project Site consists of commercial land uses and a few single-family homes (separated from the Project Site by the commercial land uses). Due to the existing barriers that already separate the Project Site from abutting properties, implementation of the Project would not result in the physical disruption or division of an



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
established community. No impact would occur. No further analy be addressed in detail in the EIR.	vsis is requi	red; therefore	, this issue	will not
b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with				\boxtimes
any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of				
avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?				

(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a; City of San Bernardino Zoning Map, 2021)

The Project Site is designated for Industrial (I) land use by the City's General Plan and is zoned Industrial Light (IL) (City of San Bernardino, 2005a; City of San Bernardino, 2021). The Project would be consistent with the Project Site's underlying General Plan land use and zoning designations and would comply with applicable policies contained in the General Plan as well as all applicable development regulations/development standards contained in the Zoning and Development Code. Accordingly, the Project would not conflict with the City's General Plan or Zoning and Development Code. The Project would otherwise not conflict with any goals, policies, or objectives of current applicable local or regional plans. No further analysis is required; therefore, this issue will not be addressed in detail in the EIR.

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES

Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource		\boxtimes	
that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?			

(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a)

The Project Site is classified as Mineral Resources Zone 2 (MRZ-2), which is defined by the CGS as an area where geologic data indicate that significant mineral deposits (aggregate resources) are present (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, p. 12-12 and Figure NRC-3). However, the Project Site is not planned for mining uses based on the Project Site's existing General Plan land use designations and zoning classifications, none of which allow for mineral resources extraction. Thus, although the Project Site occurs within MRZ-2, mining activities would not be compatible with existing and planned surrounding land uses. Furthermore, mining of the Project Site would result in the establishment of a large pit at a substantially lower elevation than surrounding properties, which is not desirable within the urban context of the Project area or the streetscape desired along 5th Street, 6th Street, or Sterling Avenue by the City of Highland or the City of San Bernardino. Accordingly, mining on the Project Site is not compatible with existing zoning and the surrounding context, and therefore is not feasible. Accordingly, Project impacts due to the loss of known mineral resources would be less than significant and no further analysis of this topic is required.

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral		\boxtimes	
resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific			
plan or other land use plan?			
(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a)			



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--	--------------------------------------	---	------------------------------------	--------------

The Project Site is not identified as a locally-important mineral resources recovery site by the City of San Bernardino's General Plan or any other land use plan. As such, the Project would not result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan or other land use plan. Impacts would be less than significant and no further analysis of this topic is required.

XIII.NOISE

Would the project result in:

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase	\boxtimes		
in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of			
standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance,			
or applicable standards of other agencies?			

Project-related construction activities, as well as long-term operational activities including warehouse operations and the associated increases in vehicular travel along area roadways resulting from the Project, may expose persons in the vicinity of the Project Site to noise levels in excess of standards established by the General Plans and Municipal Codes of the City of San Bernardino and/or City of Highland. An acoustical analysis will be prepared and the required EIR will analyze the potential for the Project to expose people, on- or off-site, to noise levels in excess of established noise standards during both near-term construction and long-term operation.

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne	\boxtimes		
noise levels?			

Construction activities on the Project Site may produce groundborne vibration or groundborne noise. The required EIR will analyze the potential of the Project to expose persons to excessive groundborne vibration. Long-term operation of the Project is not anticipated to result in perceptible levels of groundborne vibration or groundborne noise; regardless, the EIR will evaluate the potential for groundborne vibration and noise in the long-term.

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or		\boxtimes	
an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been			
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport,			
would the project expose people residing or working in the project			
area to excessive noise levels?			

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a)

There are no private airstrips in the City of San Bernardino and there are no private airstrips within two miles of the Project Site (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, p. 6-14). The nearest airport is the San Bernardino International Airport (SBIA) which is located 0.2-mile south of the Project Site. The Federal Aviation



Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
	Incorporated		

Administration (FAA) has issued a Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation (FAA, 2023). The Project Site occurs outside of the 65 dBA CNEL contour for the SBIA (SBIAA, 2010, Exhibit 4-H). According to the City of San Bernardino General Plan, industrial uses such as those proposed as part of the Project are considered "Normally Acceptable" at noise levels up to 75 dBA CNEL, while industrial land uses are considered "Conditionally Acceptable" at noise levels ranging from 70 to 80 dBA CNEL (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Exhibit N-1). Thus, because the Project would not be subject to noise levels exceeding 65 dBA CNEL, the Project would not expose people residing or working in the area to excessive airport-related noise levels, and impacts would therefore be less than significant. No further analysis of this topic is required.

XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING			
Would the project:			
a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area,		\boxtimes	
either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and			
businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads			
or other infrastructure)?			
	 C		1

(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a; City of San Bernardino Draft Housing Element, 2024)

The proposed Project would have a beneficial effect on the area's employment base by developing a vacant site with a new warehouse building. The new jobs generated would provide additional employment opportunities for residents in the area. The Project Site is designated by the City of San Bernardino's General Plan for Industrial Light (IL) development, and the Project does not propose any uses that would result in unplanned population growth that is not already allowed by the General Plan or planned by the City's Housing Element. Moreover, it is anticipated that any future employees generated by the Project could be accommodated by existing residential communities and/or by future residential uses to be constructed in accordance with the City's General Plan and/or the general plans of other nearby jurisdictions, and that no additional unplanned housing would be required to accommodate Project-related employees. Per Appendix 5 to the City's General Plan, lands designated for "Industrial Light (IL)" uses, as are proposed for the 25.12-gross-acre Project Site, generate approximately one employee per 1,030 s.f. of building area. Based on this factor, the 557,000 s.f. of light industrial uses proposed as part of the Project would generate approximately 540 new, recurring jobs (557,000 s.f. ÷ 1,030 s.f./employee = 540 employees). The City's Draft Housing Element (2021-2029) dated January 2024, shows that the City's population is projected to grow by approximately 8,400 persons between 2020 and 2039 (City of San Bernardino Draft Housing Element, Table 2-1). As such, planned jobs do not exceed planned population growth. Additionally, the Project's utility, drainage, and other improvements are designed to serve only the proposed Project, and would not induce growth indirectly on any other parcels within the Project vicinity. A less than significant impact would occur and no further analysis is required on this subject.

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing,		\boxtimes
necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?		
(Source: Google Earth, 2023)		



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Under existing conditions, there are no homes on the Project Site existing residents. Therefore, there would be no displacement of would occur. No further analysis is required on this subject.	e and the P existing pe	roject Site doe ople or housi	es not con ng, and nc	tain any) impact
XV. PUBLIC SERVICES				

Would the project:

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for new or physically altered government facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

i) Fire protection?				\boxtimes	
(Source: San Bernardino County Fire Protection District Fire Stations Map, 2023; Google Earth, 2023)					

The City of San Bernardino is served by twelve fire stations, which are maintained by the San Bernardino County Fire Protection District (SBCFPD, 2023). The nearest fire station to the Project Site is Station 233, located at 165 South Leland Norton Way, approximately 0.7-mile southwest of the Project Site. Due to the proximity of existing fire stations, the Project has no potential to cause a fire station to be physically altered or for a new fire station to be constructed. No further analysis is warranted.

ii) Police protection?		\boxtimes

(Source: Google Earth, 2023)

The Project would introduce a new building and employees to the Project Site, which would result in an incremental increase in demand for police protection services, but is not anticipated to require or result in the construction of new or physically altered police facilities. The nearest first response police station is at 710 North D Street, San Bernardino, CA, approximately 2.8 miles west of the Project Site. Due to the proximity of existing police stations, the Project has no potential to cause a police station to be physically altered or for a new police station to be constructed. No further analysis is warranted.

iii) Schools?		\boxtimes

The proposed Project would not create a direct demand for public school services, as the subject property would contain non-residential uses that would not generate any school-aged children requiring public education. Although the Project would not create a demand for additional public school services, the Project Applicant would be required to contribute development impact fees to the San Bernardino City Unified School District (SBCUSD), in compliance with California Senate Bill 50. Mandatory payment of school fees would be required prior to the issuance of a building permit. Pursuant to Senate Bill 50, payment of school impact fees constitutes complete mitigation for project-related impacts to school services. With mandatory payment of fees in accordance with California Senate Bill 50, there would be no impacts to public schools, and further analysis of this topic is not required.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
iv) Parks?				\square

The Project does not propose any type of residential use or other land use that may generate a population that would result in a demand for parkland resources, and no recreational facilities are proposed as part of the Project. Thus, the Project would not result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered recreational facilities, or due to the need for new or physically altered recreational facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for parks and recreational resources. No impact would occur, and further analysis of this topic is not required.

v) Other public facilities?		\boxtimes

The Project would not directly substantially increase the residential population in the City, and therefore is not expected to result in a demand for other public facilities/services, including libraries, community recreation centers, post offices, and animal shelters. As such, implementation of the proposed Project would not adversely affect other public facilities or require the construction of new or modified public facilities and no impact would occur. No further analysis is required on this subject.

XVI.	RECREATION		
a) Wo	uld the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or		\boxtimes
regiona	al parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial		
physica	al deterioration of the facility would occur or be		
acceler	rated?		

The Project does not involve any type of residential use or other land use that may generate a population that would increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities. Accordingly, implementation of the proposed Project would not result in the increased use or substantial physical deterioration of an existing neighborhood or regional park, and no impact would occur. No further analysis of this subject is required.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the		\boxtimes
construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might		
have an adverse physical effect on the environment?		

The Project does not involve the construction of any new on- or off-site recreation facilities. The Project would not expand any existing off-site recreational facilities. Therefore, no impacts related to the construction or expansion of recreational facilities would occur with implementation of the proposed Project. Additional analysis of this issue is not required.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
XVII. TRANSPORTATION				
Would the project:				
a) Conflict with an applicable program, plan, ordinance, or policy	\boxtimes			
addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway,				
bicycle and pedestrian facilities?				

(Source: Google Earth, 2023; City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a)

The proposed Project would generate an increase in daily and peak hour vehicle trips, including passenger vehicle and truck traffic, as compared to existing conditions. A traffic study will be prepared for the Project to identify roadway facility improvements that would be necessary to comply with applicable programs, plans, policies, and ordinances of affected jurisdictions, including but not limited to the City of San Bernardino and the City of Highland. Sterling Avenue and 5th Street are City designated bicycle routes adjacent to the Project Site (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Figure PRT-2). The required EIR will disclose the findings of the traffic study and also will evaluate the Project's potential to conflict with applicable plans, ordinances, and policies that establish a minimum level of performance for various modes of travel, including those related to transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities.

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section	\boxtimes		
15064.3, subdivision (b)?			

Senate Bill 743 (SB 743), which was codified in Public Resources Code Section 21099, required changes to the CEQA Guidelines regarding the analysis of transportation impacts. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21099, the criteria for determining the significance of transportation impacts must promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, the development of multimodal transportation networks, and a diversity of land uses. To that end, in developing the criteria, the Governor's Office of Planning and Research proposed, and the California Natural Resources Agency certified and adopted, changes to the CEQA Guidelines that identify vehicle miles traveled (VMT) as the most appropriate metric to evaluate a project's transportation impacts. Updates to the State CEQA Guidelines that were approved in December 2018 included the addition of CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3, of which Subdivision b establishes criteria for evaluating a project's transportation impacts based on project type and using VMTs as the metric. The proposed Project would attract passenger vehicles and trucks to the Project Site, which would lead to a net increase in the amount of VMT within the region. A Project-specific VMT analysis will be prepared. The Project's anticipated VMT will be evaluated against the City of San Bernardino's VMT performance standards in conformance with SB 743 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3(b). The results of the VMT analysis will be evaluated and disclosed in the required EIR.

c) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature (e.g., sharp		\boxtimes	
curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g. farm			
equipment)?			



Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
--------------------------------------	------------------------------------	--------------

All improvements planned as part of the Project would be in conformance with applicable City of San Bernardino and City of Highland standards and would not result in any hazards due to a design feature. Additionally, the Project is surrounded by a mixture of industrial, commercial, aviation, and residential land uses and undeveloped land and as such the Project would not represent an incompatible use that could increase transportation-related hazards in the local area. Therefore, the Project would not substantially increase hazards to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment), and impacts would be less than significant. No further analysis of this topic is required.

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?		\boxtimes	

The Project Site and adjacent public roadways are not identified as a designated emergency access route. During the course of the San Bernardino County Fire Protection District's required review of the Project's applications, the Project's design is reviewed to ensure that adequate access to and from the Project Site is provided for emergency vehicles during both construction and long-term operation. Furthermore, no existing streets would be closed on a permanent or temporary basis as a result of the Project. Temporary intermittent single lane closures along the Project Site's street frontages, if needed during Project construction, would be managed by temporary traffic controls (e.g., flaggers, cones, signage) to ensure continued traffic flow and access including for emergency vehicles. With required adherence to the County Fire Protection District requirements for emergency vehicle access, impacts are expected to be less than significant. No further analysis is required on this subject.

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES

Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical	\boxtimes		
resources or in a local register of historical resources as defined in			
Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k)?			

No known resources that are eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k) are located on the Project Site. In accordance with AB 52, the City of San Bernardino is required to send notifications of the proposed Project to Native American tribes with traditional or cultural affiliation to the area and will consult with interested tribes regarding the Project's potential to affect a tribal cultural resource. The results of the Native American consultation will be disclosed in the EIR. The Gabrieleño Band of Mission Indians of Kizh Nation, a California State recognized aboriginal tribe of the Los Angeles Basin, has proposed Tribal Cultural Resource mitigation measures that will be considered during EIR preparation. Additionally, the Project Applicant is a related entity of the Yuhaaviatam of San Manuel Nation, a federally recognized Indian Tribe, also recognized as the San Manuel Band of Mission Indians (the "Tribe"). The Tribe has reviewed the Project and indicated that

Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
-	Incorporated	-	

the Project Site has low sensitivity for tribal cultural resources. The surface sediments on the Project Site and in the Site's vicinity are primarily Holocene-age sand and gravel associated with alluvial fans and/or active stream channels (SoCal Geotechnical, 2024). The origins of these sediments are closely related to City Creek, which once flowed roughly 1,000 feet south of the project location prior to channelization, and to the Santa Ana River about one mile further to the south, which was historically prone to widespread flooding events before the construction of Seven Oaks Dam upstream and other flood control projects. Given the Project Site's location in the previous floodplains of these waterways, the Project location would not have been considered a favorable environment for long-term settlement in prehistoric times, nor would the setting be conducive for the preservation of subsurface archaeological deposits. Furthermore, the ground surface across a majority of the Project Site has been disturbed in the past by agricultural operations and, later, residential construction activities, which have left little vestige of the native landscape. Consequently, the subsurface sediments on the Project Site have a low sensitivity for potentially significant tribal cultural resources. Nonetheless, the Tribe will require the following as part of the Project:

- 1. In the event that potential tribal cultural resources are discovered during Project activities, all work in the immediate vicinity of the find (within a 60-foot buffer) shall cease and a qualified archaeologist meeting Secretary of Interior standards shall be hired to assess the find. Work on the other portions of the Project outside of the buffered area may continue during this assessment period. Additionally, the Yuhaaviatam of San Manuel Nation Cultural Resources Department (YSMN) shall be contacted regarding any pre-contact and/or historic-era finds and be provided information after the archaeologist makes his/her initial assessment of the nature of the find, so as to provide Tribal input with regards to significance and treatment.
- 2. If significant pre-contact and/or historic-era cultural resources, as defined by CEQA are discovered and avoidance cannot be ensured, the archaeologist shall develop a Monitoring and Treatment Plan, the drafts of which shall be provided to YSMN for review and comment. The archaeologist shall monitor the remainder of the project and implement the Plan accordingly. This Plan shall allow for a monitor to be present that represents YSMN for the remainder of the project, should YSMN elect to place a monitor on-site.
- 3. Any and all archaeological/cultural documents created as a part of the project (isolate records, site records, survey reports, testing reports, etc.) shall be supplied to the applicant and Lead Agency for dissemination to YSMN. The Lead Agency and/or applicant shall, in good faith, consult with YSMN throughout the life of the project.

Because ground-disturbing construction activities have the potential to uncover subsurface tribal cultural resources and result in a potential and substantial adverse change to tribal cultural resources in the event of such resources being discovered, further analysis of this topic is required in the EIR.

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and	\boxtimes		
supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to			
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code			



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Section 5024.1? In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c)				
of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency will				
consider the significance of the resource to a California Native				
American tribe.				

As explained above under the discussion of Threshold XVIII(a), further analysis of this topic is required in the EIR.

XIX.UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS			
Would the project			
a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or	\boxtimes		
expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage,			
electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the			
construction or relocation of which could cause significant			
environmental effects?			

(Source: Project Application Materials)

The Project would entail local connections to existing water, wastewater treatment, storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, and telecommunications facilities, as these facilities are available within the immediately surrounding area. Such local connections are inherent to the Project's construction phase, and impacts associated with the Project's construction phase will be evaluated in the required EIR under the appropriate topical subheadings, as described herein. Because the installation of utilities could contribute to significant environmental effects during the Project's construction phase further analysis of this topic will occur in the EIR.

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and		\boxtimes	
reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry			
and multiple dry years?			

(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a; Upper Santa Ana River Watershed Integrated Regional UWMP, 2020)

The operation of a warehouse building on the Project Site would result in an increase in potable water demand compared to the Project Site's existing, vacant condition. The Project Site is designated by the City of San Bernardino General Plan for development with Industrial (I) land uses (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Figure LU-2). The Project Site's existing General Plan land use designations were utilized in part to inform growth projections published by SCAG, which in turn were used as inputs in the 2020 Upper Santa Ana River Watershed Integrated Regional Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). The 2020 UWMP demonstrates that the City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department (SBMWD) service area would be served with adequate water resources during normal, wet, dry, and multiple dry years to meet the demands associated with projected growth in residents and employment through at least 2045. Because the 2020 UWMP demonstrates that there



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
would be adequate water resources to meet the projected demar	nds through	n 2045, the SB	MWD wou	uld have
sufficient water supplies available to serve the Project and reasona	bly foresee	able future de	evelopmen	t during
normal, dry, and multiple dry years (IRUWMP, 2020). Therefore, n	o further a	nalysis of this	topic is rec	quired.
c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment			\boxtimes	
provider which serves or may serve the project that it has				
adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in				
addition to the provider's existing commitments?				

(Source: City of San Bernardino Water Department Water Reclamation Plant Facilities Assessment and Master Plan, 2020)

Wastewater generated by the Project would be treated at the City of San Bernardino's Water Reclamation Plant (SBWRP). According to the WRP Facilities Assessment and Master Plan, the SBWRP has a design capacity of 33 million gallons per day (MGD). In 2020, the SBWRP had a total flow of 21.5 MGD and by 2040, the flow was expected to rise to 26.4 MGD. From 1957 to July 2022, the SBWRP treated all wastewater generated by the East Valley Water District (EVWD); however, in July 2022, the EVWD opened the Sterling Natural Resource Center, which lead to a reduction in flow to the SBWRP. Factoring out EVWD contribution to influent flow, the 2040 SBWRP influent flow is expected to be 18.6 MGD, only 56.4 percent of the total daily capacity (City of San Bernardino, 2020, p. 6-4). The Project is consistent with the General Plan land use designation for the Project Site and would therefore have been included in the projections for wastewater treatment. Additionally, the warehouse use proposed as part of the Project will generate substantially less wastewater than other types of light industrial uses, because most of the building space will be occupied by goods storage inside a large warehouse, with wastewater generation sources generally limited to an employee break room and restrooms. Accordingly, implementation of the Project would not create the need for any new or expanded wastewater facilities. It is anticipated that there is adequate capacity at existing treatment facilities to serve Project demands, impacts would be less than significant, and mitigation is not required. No further analysis of this topic is required.

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in
 excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair
 the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

(Source: City of San Bernardino General Plan, 2005a; City of San Bernardino General Plan EIR, 2005b; CalRecycle SWIS Facility/Site Inspection Details, 2023)

The City of San Bernardino contracts with Burrtec Waste Industries for solid waste services. The City of San Bernardino has no active landfills but primarily utilizes the San Timoteo and Mid-Valley landfills. According to the EIR prepared for the City of San Bernardino 2005 General Plan Update, businesses (including the warehouse uses proposed as part of the Project) generate approximately 2.37 tons per employee per year. (San Bernardino, 2005b, pp. 5.15-16 and Table 5.15-5) Per Appendix 5 to the City of San Bernardino's General Plan, lands designated for "Industrial Light (IL)" uses, as are proposed for the 25.12-gross-acre Project Site, generate approximately one employee per 1,030 s.f. of building area. Based on this factor, the 557,000 s.f. of light

 \boxtimes

1			1
Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact

industrial uses proposed as part of the Project would generate approximately 540 new, recurring jobs (557,000 s.f. ÷ 1,030 s.f./employee = 540 employees). (City of San Bernardino, 2005a, Appendix 5) Thus, the Project would generate approximately 1,279.8 tons per year (3.5 tons per day) of solid waste requiring disposal at the San Timoteo and/or Mid-Valley landfills. According to information available from CalRecycle, in the month of March 2023, the San Timoteo landfill experienced a peak tonnage of 1,974.3 tons per day (tpd), while this facility is allowed a maximum tonnage of 3,000 tpd for up to 15 days per calendar year (CalRecycle, 2023a). In the month of April 2023, the Mid-Valley landfill had a peak tonnage of 5,498.17 tpd, while this facility is permitted to receive up to 7,500 tpd (CalRecycle, 2023b). Thus, the 3.5 tpd generated by the Project would represent only 0.34% of the available daily capacity at the San Timoteo landfill and 0.17% of the available daily capacity at the Mid-Valley landfill. Additionally, as of April 2019, the San Timoteo landfill had a remaining capacity of 12.3 million cubic yards, while as of June 2019 the Mid-Valley landfill had a remaining capacity of 61.2 million cubic yards (CalRecycle, 2023a; CalRecycle, 2023b). Accordingly, adequate capacity exists at both the San Timoteo and Mid-Valley landfills to accommodate solid waste generated by the Project. Additionally, the Project would be subject to the City of San Bernardino's solid waste regulations as set forth in Chapter 8.24 of the City of San Bernardino's Municipal Code. Chapter 8.24 includes enforceable requirements for the recycling and diversion of solid waste from the regional landfills. With mandatory compliance with Chapter 8.24 of the City of San Bernardino's Municipal Code, the Project would not generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals. Impacts would be less than significant, and further analysis of this topic is not required.

e) Comply with federal, state, and local statues and regulations		\boxtimes	
related to solid waste?			

The Project would be required to comply with the City of San Bernardino's waste reduction programs, including recycling and other diversion programs to reduce the amount of solid waste deposited in landfills. As such, future building users at the Project Site would be required to work with refuse haulers to develop and implement feasible waste reduction programs, including source reduction, recycling, and composting. Additionally, in accordance with the California Solid Waste Reuse and Recycling Act of 1991 (Cal Pub Res. Code § 42911), the Project would be required to provide adequate areas for collecting and loading recyclable materials where solid waste is collected. The collection areas are required to be shown on construction drawings and be in place before occupancy permits are issued. The implementation of these programs would reduce the amount of solid waste generated and diverted to landfills, which in turn would aid in the extension of the life of affected disposal sites. The Project would be subject to all federal, State, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste. As such, a less than significant impact would occur, and further analysis of this topic is not required.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
XX. WILDFIRE				
If located in or near State responsibility areas or lands classified as	very high f	fire hazard sev	erity zone	s, would
the project:				
a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or				\boxtimes
emergency evacuation plan?				
(Source: CalFire FHSZ Viewer, 2023)				
A State Responsibility Area (SRA) includes lands where the State of California is financially responsible for the				
prevention and suppression of wildfires, and the Project Site is not	located wit	hin any SRAs (CalFire, 20	23). Fire
protection services to the Project Site are and would continue to	be provide	d by the San I	Bernardinc	County

Fire Protection District (SBCFPD). The Project Site is not identified as part of any adopted emergency response plans or emergency evacuation plans, and the Project has no potential to conflict with any such plans. Furthermore, no existing streets would be closed on a permanent or temporary basis as a result of the Project. Temporary intermittent single lane closures along the Project Site's street frontages, if needed during Project construction, would be managed by temporary traffic controls (e.g., flaggers, cones, signage) to ensure continued traffic flow and access including for emergency vehicles. As such, no impacts to adopted emergency response plans or emergency evacuation plans would occur with implementation of the proposed Project, and no further analysis of this topic is required.

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate		\boxtimes	
wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant			
concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a			
wildfire?			

As noted under the analysis of Threshold XX(a), the Project Site is not located within any SRAs, as fire protection services in the Project area are provided by the SBCFPD. Additionally, the Project Site is located in an area that is largely urbanized and contains no large and continuous open space areas that have the potential for wildland fire hazards. The Project would result in construction and operation of a large warehouse building with exterior impervious surfaces and irrigated landscaping, which would not result in any increase in fire hazards in the local area. Wildfire hazards would be reduced with conversion of the vacant Project Site to a developed warehouse use. Therefore, the Project has no potential to exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby exposing people to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire. A less-than-significant impact would occur, and further analysis of this topic is not required.

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated		
infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water		
sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk		
or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the		
environment?		

 \times



Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact

The Project Site is not located within a portion of the City of San Bernardino that is subject to wildfire hazards, and the Project Site is not located within any SRAs. Aside from standard building construction requirements, including the installation of fire sprinklers, the provision of fire hydrants, and the use of irrigated landscaping, the Project does not include any fire protection-related infrastructure that could result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment. Wildfire hazards would be reduced with conversion of the vacant Project Site to a developed warehouse use. No impact would occur, and further analysis of this topic is not required.

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including			\boxtimes
downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of			
runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?			

The Project Site is not located within a portion of the City of San Bernardino that is subject to wildfire hazards, and the Project Site is not located within any SRAs. The Project Site occurs in a portion of the City of San Bernardino that exhibits generally flat topography, and there are no large slopes in the Project vicinity that could be subject to landslide hazards as a result of post-fire slope instability. Additionally, there are no components of the Project that could result in or exacerbate flooding hazards associated with wildland fire hazards. Wildfire hazards would be reduced with conversion of the vacant Project Site to a developed warehouse use. No impacts would occur, and further analysis of this topic is not required.

XXI.MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE			
a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade			
the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of			
a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop			
below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or			
animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the			
range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate			
important examples of the major period of California history or			
prehistory?			

The Project has the potential to substantially reduce the habitat of a wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history. The EIR will evaluate the Project's potential to degrade the quality of the environment and/or result in substantial adverse effects to biological and cultural (historical) resources.



	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but	\boxtimes			
cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means				
that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when				
viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects				
of other current projects, and the effects of probable future				
projects.)				

The Project Site is located within the City of San Bernardino, and other portions of the City of San Bernardino as well as nearby cities have a number of on-going development projects. The Project, in addition to concurrent construction and operation of other development projects in the area, has the potential to result in cumulatively-considerable impacts, particularly with respect to the following issue areas: air quality, greenhouse gas emissions, noise, and transportation. The required EIR will evaluate the Project's potential to result in cumulatively-considerable contributions to cumulatively significant impacts.

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause	\boxtimes		
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or			
indirectly?			

The potential for the proposed Project to directly or indirectly affect human beings will be evaluated in the required EIR particularly with respect to the following issue areas: air quality and greenhouse gas emissions (including emissions from Project-related traffic), seismic activity, and noise.



4.0 REFERENCES

This Initial Study was prepared by:

City of San Bernardino

Elizabeth Mora-Rodriguez, Senior Planner

T&B Planning, Inc.

Tracy Zinn, AICP, Principal Kristen Goddard, AICP, Senior Planner Emily Golubow, Project Coordinator Cristina Maxey, GIS/Graphics Manager

The following information sources were used during the preparation of this IS:

Cited As	Reference
CalFire, 2023	California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, 2023. FHSZ Viewer. 2023. Accessed
	June 6, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://egis.fire.ca.gov/FHSZ/
CalRecycle,	CalRecycle, 2023. SWIS Facility/Site Inspection Details, San Timoteo Sanitary Landfill (36-AA-
2023a	0087). April 18, 2023. Accessed June 7, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteInspection/Details/354437
CalRecycle,	CalRecycle, 2023. SWIS Facility/Site Inspection Details, Mid-Valley Sanitary Landfill (36-AA-
2023b	0055). May 9, 2023. Accessed June 7, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteInspection/Details/354637
Caltrans, 2021	California Department of Transportation, 2021. California State Scenic Highway System
	Map. April 27, 2021. Accessed June 1, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=465dfd3d807c46cc8e
	8057116f1aacaa
CARB, 2022	California Air Resources Board, 2022. Maps of State and Federal Area Designations.
	November 2022. Accessed June 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/maps-state-and-federal-area-designations
CCR, 2023	California Code of Regulations (Public Resources Code) Section 5097. Accessed September
	5, 2023. Available on-line: <u>https://nahc.ca.gov/codes/california-public-resources-code-</u>
	<u>5097-9/</u>
CDC, 2018	California Department of Conservation, 2018. California Important Farmland Finder. 2018.
	Accessed June 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/
City of San	City of San Bernardino, 2005. City of San Bernardino General Plan. November 1, 2005.
Bernardino,	Accessed May 25, 2023. Available on-line:
2005a	https://cdnsm5-
	hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_17442462/File/Government/Department/C



	ommunity%20&%20Economic%20Development/Planning/Complete%20General%20Plan%
	20Compressed.pdf
City of San	City of San Bernardino, 2005. San Bernardino General Plan Update and Associated Specific
Bernardino,	Plans Environmental Impact Report. July 25, 2005.
2005b	
City of San	City of San Bernardino, 2020. City of San Bernardino Water Department Water Reclamation
Bernardino, 2020	Plant Facilities Assessment and Master Plan. May 2020. Accessed February 9, 2024.
	Available on-line:
	https://www.sbmwd.org/DocumentCenter/View/7679/Water-Reclamation-Plant-Master-
	Plan-2020
City of San	City of San Bernardino, 2021. City of San Bernardino Official Zoning Map. January 15, 2021.
Bernardino, 2021	Accessed June 7, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://cdnsm5-
	hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server 17442462/File/About/Map/Official%20Zoni
	ng%20Map%2042x42/OfficialZoningMap_42x42.pdf
City of San	City of San Bernardino, 2023. City of San Bernardino Municipal Code. April 2023. Accessed
Bernardino, 2023	June 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www.sbcity.org/city_hall/city_clerk/municipal_code
City of San	City of San Bernardino, 2024. Draft General Plan Housing Element 2021-2029. January
Bernardino, 2023	2024. Accessed February 26, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://cdnsm5-
	hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server 17442462/File/Government/Department/C
	ommunity%20&%20Economic%20Development/Planning/Housing%20Element/San%20Ber
	nardino%202021-2029%20Housing%20Element%20(01.24.2024).pdf
County of San	County of San Bernardino, 2023. Geologic Hazard Maps. San Bernardino South Quadrangle,
Bernardino, 2023	FH30 C. Accessed September 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	FH30C_20100309.pdf (sbcounty.gov)
DTSC, n.d.	Department of Toxic Substances Control, n.d. <i>EnviroStor Database</i> . No date. Accessed June
	6, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?global_id=36990002
FAA, 2023	Federal Aviation Administration, 2023. Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation. June
	07, 2023.
FEMA, 2016	Federal Emergency Management Agency, 2016. FEMA's National Flood Hazard Layer
	(NFHL) Viewer. September 2, 2016. Accessed June 6, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://hazards-
	fema.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8b0adb51996444d4879338b55
	29aa9cd&extent=-117.51213951851739,34.062752455796826,-
	<u>117.50874384190405,34.06497443466799</u>
IRUWMP, 2020	IRUWMP, 2020. Upper Santa Ana River Watershed Integrated Regional Urban Water
	Management Plan. 2020. Accessed February 9, 2024. Available on-line:
	https://www.sbvwcd.org/our-projects/upper-santa-ana-integrated-regional-water-
	management-plan/



Kimley-Horn,	Kimley Horn, 2023. 5 th and Sterling Avenue San Bernardino, California, Preliminary Drainage
2023	Report. June 2023 (revised: February 16, 2024).
RWQCB, 2010	California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 2010. National Pollutant Discharge
	Elimination System (NPDES) Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for the San
	Bernardino County Flood Control District, the County of San Bernardino, and the
	Incorporated Cities of San Bernardino County Within the Santa Ana Region. January 29,
	2010. Accessed June 6, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/board_decisions/adopted_orders/orders/2010
	<u>/10_036_sbc_ms4_permit_01_29_10.pdf</u>
RWQCB, 2019	California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 2019. Water Quality Control Plan Santa
	Ana River Basin. June 2019. Accessed June 6, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/
SBCFPD, 2023	San Bernardino County Fire Protection District, 2023. San Bernardino County Fire Stations
	and Division Areas. 2023. Accessed June 7, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://sbcfire.org/firestations/
SBIAA, 2010	San Bernardino International Airport Authority, 2010. Airport Layout Plan Narrative Report
	for San Bernardino International Airport. November 2010. Accessed June 6, 2023. Available
	on-line:
	https://www.sbiaa.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/ALP-Narrative-Report-Complete.pdf
SCAQMD, 2022	South Coast Air Quality Management District, 2022. 2022 Air Quality Management Plan.
	December 2, 2022. Accessed June 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/clean-air-plans/air-quality-management-
	plans/2022-air-quality-management-plan/final-2022-aqmp/final-2022-aqmp.pdf?sfvrsn=16
SoCal	Southern California Geotechnical, 2023. Geotechnical Investigation 5 th and Sterling Avenue,
Geotechnical,	SEC 6th Street at Sterling Avenue. February 16, 2024.
2024	
USFS, 2021	United States Forest Service, 2021. Interactive Visitor Map. 2021. Accessed June 5, 2023.
	Available on-line:
	https://www.fs.usda.gov/ivm/
USCB, 2012	United States Census Bureau, 2012. 2010 Census - Urbanized Area Reference Map: Riverside
	- San Bernardino, CA. March 11, 2012. Accessed June 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www2.census.gov/geo/maps/dc10map/UAUC_RefMap/ua/ua75340_riverside
	san_bernardino_ca/DC10UA75340.pdf
USFWS, 2023a	United States Fish and Wildlife Service, 2023. Critical Habitat Mapping Tool. Accessed
	September 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://www.arcgis.com/apps/mapviewer/index.html?url=https://services.arcgis.com/QVE
	NGdaPbd4LUkLV/ArcGIS/rest/services/USFWS_Critical_Habitat/FeatureServer&source=sd
USFWS, 2023b	United States Fish and Wildlife Service, 2023. National Wetlands Inventory Mapping Tool.
	Accessed September 5, 2023. Available on-line:
	https://fwsprimary.wim.usgs.gov/wetlands/apps/wetlands-mapper
WSC, 2017	Water Systems Consulting, Inc., 2017. 2015 San Bernardino Valley Regional Urban Water
	Management Plan. June 2017. Accessed June 2017. Available on-line:
	http://documents.yvwd.dst.ca.us/publications/SBVMWD/SBVRUWMP2017.pdf



YSMN, 2023	Yuhaaviatam of San Manuel Nation Cultural Resources Department (YSMN). Personal
	communication with T&B Planning, Inc. September 19, 2023